
 

 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 
1. Call to Order 

Called to Order by Stephen Loney. 

Present: Stephen Loney, Joel Hatcher, William Short, Lawson Dickson, Andrea Cook, Viki White, 
Gareth Rowberry, Tony Hillier, Paul Price, Charles Cook, Bill Hickey, Wilf Thomas, Chris Pike 
(secretary). 

2. Approval of Minutes of 2018 Annual General Meeting 

As attached. 

Moved by Viki White, Seconded Gareth Rowberry: Carried. 

3. Report of Nominating Committee 

Be it resolved that Joel Hatcher, Stephen Loney, Viki White, Paul Price, and Charles Cook be elected 
directors of the Corporation. 

Moved by Andrea Cook, seconded by Lawson Dickson: Carried. 

4. Resolution Approving Actions of the Board taken since the last Annual General Meeting: 

Be it resolved that the all actions taken on behalf of the Corporation by the Directors during the 
period September 1, 2018 to August 31, 2019 be ratified. 

Moved by Paul Price, seconded by Blair Sparkes: Carried. 

5. Appointment of Auditor 

Be it resolved that KPMG Chartered Accountants be appointed the auditor of the Corporation for 
the fiscal period September 1, 2018 to August 31, 2019. 

Motion to Table moved by Joel Hatcher, Seconded Charles Cook: Carried. 



6. Other Business 

6.1. Financial Statements 

Charles Cook reported that he was unable to complete formal financial statements due to the time 
of the time demands of his work on the sale of the Corporation’s building at 55 Karwood Drive, 
Paradise. He reported that the Corporation held approximately $72,000 at August 31, 2019. He said 
the formal statements will be circulated once he completes them. 

6.2. Sale of 55 Karwood Drive 

Charles Cook reported that the Corporation has reached a conditional agreement to sell its building 
at 55 Karwood Drive. Additional details will be reported once the conditions are met and the 
agreement is finalized.  

6.3. Expanding the pool of Voting Members 

Chris Pike reported that the plan to expand the Corporation’s pool of Voting Members was deferred 
because of changes Scouts Canada introduced to Council structures. This item will be brought 
forward at the 2020 Annual general Meeting. 

6.4. New By-law to record the Corporation’s obligations to groups that hold real estate 

Chris Pike reported he is still working on a b-law to define the Corporation’s obligations to the 
Groups that own real property. He expects that this item will be brought forward at the 2020 Annual 
General Meeting. 

7. Adjournment 

Adjourned on motion by Paul Price. 

 

 

_________________________ 
Christopher Pike 
Secretary 
Council Team Lead, Corporate Governance 
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Statement of Financial Position

August 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

(Unaudited)

2019 2018

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash 72,747$                69,167$                

Accounts receivable 23,576                  14,219                  

RBC Building fund 14,375                  14,375                  

Due from related party 17,078                  3,356                     

127,776                101,117                

Property and equipment (Note3) 1,477,686            1,512,272            

1,605,461$          1,613,389$          

LIABLITIES AND UNRESTRCITED NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable -                          -                          

Accrued liabilities 111,361                91,072                  

Deferred revenue 8,667                     10,834                  

Deposits held for related Scout Groups -                          9,799                     

120,028                111,705                

Employee future benefits 7,582                     7,582                     

127,610                119,287                

Net assets

Restricted net assets 30,966                  30,966                  

Unrestricted net assets 1,446,885            1,463,136            

1,605,461$          1,613,389$          

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

_____________________________  Member    _________________________________  Member

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 

Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Statement of Operations 

August 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

(Unaudited)

2019 2018

Revenues

Fundraising 3,127$                  17,429$                

Government grants 36,321                  35,477                  

Trust Foundation grants -                          -                          

Other income 28,452                  7,982                     

Rental income 47,055                  52,631                  

114,955                113,519                

Expenditures

Salaries and benefits 19,595$                21,410$                

Office and general 3,322                     4,473                     

Amortization 34,586                  36,304                  

Travel -                          -                          

Professional fees 10,173                  2,990                     

Repairs and maintenance 20,491                  14,528                  

Fuel and propane 4,837                     4,991                     

Insurance 18,352                  17,602                  

Telephone 3,970                     2,097                     

Utilities 4,424                     5,549                     

Advertising -                          -                          

Vehicles 642                         1,500                     

Snow clearing and lawn care 7,531                     7,568                     

Training -                          -                          

Other 2,751                     4,625                     

Interest and bank changes 532                         359                         

Loss on disposal of assets -                          -                          

131,206                123,995                

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures ($16,251) ($10,477)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 

Labrador) Properties Inc.



 

4 
 

 
 

Statement of Cash Flows

August 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

(Unaudited)

2019 2018

Cash provided by (used in):

Operations:

(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenditures ($16,251) ($10,477)

Items not involving cash:

Amortization 34,586                  36,304                  

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (9,357)                   (1,964)                   

(Increase) decrease in due from related party (13,722)                 (3,188)                   

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -                          

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued

    liabilitities 10,490                  (8,332)                   

Transfer of cash to related party -                          -                          

Increase (decrease) in future employee benefits -                          -                          

(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue (2,167)                   (2,708)                   

Gain (loss) on sale of assets -                          -                          

3,579                     9,634                     

Investing:

Advances to related party -                          -                          

Purchase of property and equipment -                          -                          

-                          -                          

Increase (Decrease) in cash 3,579                     9,634                     

Cash, beginning of year 69,167                  59,533                  

Cash, end of year 72,746$                69,167$                

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 

Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

August 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

(Unaudited)

Restricted Unrestricted Investment in 2019 2018

Capital Assets

Net assets, beginning of year 30,966$             1,463,941$      ($805) 1,494,102$   1,504,579$    

Excess (deficiency) of revenue

over expenses -                      18,335               (34,586)         (16,251)           (10,477)           

Disposal of assets -                      -                      -                  -                   -                    

Transfer -                      -                      -                  -                   -                    

Net assets, end of year 30,966$             1,482,276$      ($35,391) 1,477,851$   1,494,102$    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and                                          

Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements     
       

Year ended August 31, 2019     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Properties Inc. (“Properties Inc.") is incorporated under 

the laws of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador as a not-for-profit organization and as such 

has no share capital and is exempt from the payment of income tax.  

 

The Newfoundland and Labrador Council (NL Council) is a regional council of the National Operation, 

which controls and operates Properties Inc. Scouts Canada is a national organization operating 

programs aimed at contributing to the education of young people through a value system based on 

the Scout Law and Promise, to help build a better world where people are self-fulfilled as individuals 

and play a constructive role in society.  Formerly called the Boy Scouts of Canada, the National 

Operation was incorporated on June 12, 1914 by an Act of the Canadian Parliament. 

        

1. Significant accounting policies: 

 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for 

not-for-profit organizations.  The Entity’s significant accounting polices are as follows: 

 

(a) Financial instruments: 

 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Freestanding 

derivative instruments that are not in a qualifying hedging relationship and equity 

instruments that are quoted in an active market are subsequently measured at fair value. All 

other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless 

management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value. The Entity has not elected to 

carry any such financial instruments at fair value. 

 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 

subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are 

adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing cost, which are amortized 

using the straight-line method. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 

Labrador) Properties Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2019     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal year 

if there are indicators of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the Entity 

determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future 

cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the expected 

cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the present 

value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from the selling of the 

financial asset or the amount the Entity expects to realize by exercising its right to any 

collateral. If events and circumstances reverse in a future year, an impairment loss will be 

reversed to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value. 

 

(b) Property and equipment: 

 

Capital assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization.  Amortization is provided 

using the declining-balance method at the following annual rates: 

 

 
The carrying amount of an item of property and equipment is tested for recoverability 

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 

recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognized when the asset’s carrying amount is not 

recoverable and exceeds its fair value. 

 

Asset Rate

Building 2%

Campsite Building & Roadwork 2%

Furniture and fixtures 10%

Equipment 10%

Camp Nor'Wes Equipment 20%

Vehicles 20%

Campsite equipment 20%

Computer 30%
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2019     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 

(c) Use of estimates: 

 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting 

standards for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates 

and assumptions include the carrying amounts of property and equipment. Actual results 

could differ from those estimates. 

 

(d) Revenue recognition: 

 

Camp and other fees are recognized as revenue in the applicable Restricted or Unrestricted 

fund in the fiscal year to which they relate. 

 

Properties Inc follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Unrestricted 

contributions are recognized as revenue in the period received. Externally restricted 

contributions are recognized as revenues in the period which the related expenses are 

incurred.  Pledges of contributions and fundraising revenues are recorded upon receipt since 

they cannot be reasonably estimated. Camp and other fees are recognized as revenue in the 

period to which they relate. 

 

(e) Contributed services: 

 

Volunteers contribute many hours to assist Properties Inc in the governance of its operations 

and programs.  Because of the difficulty in assessing the number of hours and their fair value, 

contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements. 

 

(f) Financial instruments: 

 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. All other financial 

instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has  
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2019     

(Unaudited)     
       

 

        

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 

elected to carry the instruments at fair value.  Properties Inc has not elected to carry any 

such financial instruments at fair value. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of 

financial instruments measured subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other 

financial instruments are adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing 

cost, which are amortized using the straight-line method. 

 

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal year 

if there are indicators of impairment.  If there is an indicator of impairment, Properties Inc 

determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future 

cash flows from the financial asset.  If there is a significant adverse change in in the expected 

cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the present 

value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized in selling the financial 

asset or the amount Properties expects to realize by exercising its right to any collateral.  If 

events and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss will be reversed to 

the extend of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value.  

 

 

2. Property and equipment: 

 

Properties Inc. holds ownership of thirty-seven campsites and crown land leases which were 

either acquired when Scout groups ceased to operate or were transferred to Properties Inc 

through the NL Council.  Since these assets were acquired at no cost to Properties Inc., they have 

each been recorded by Properties Inc. at a value of $1. 

 

With the notification of cessation of operational activities by the National Operation in a specific 

asset (Note 6), Properties Inc. commenced a review to determine viability of continued use of 

that asset, ultimately placing the asset for sale. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2019     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

2. Property and equipment (continued): 

 

 
 

3. Contingencies: 

Government grants: 

 

During the fiscal year, Properties Inc received $25,000 (2018 - $25,000) in revenue from 

government grants.  These grants are for contracts with certain terms and conditions that may 

require that advances be repaid if the terms and conditions are not fulfilled.  Wage grants 

awarded to NL Council and managed by Properties Inc amounting to $9,357 (2018 - $8,513) are 

not repayable. 

 

Other: 

 

Under certain circumstances, the NL Council could be held liable for the obligations of the regions, 

districts and other groups. 

 

2019 2018

Cost

Accumulated 

Amortation

Net Book 

Value

Net Book 

Value

Land 37$                 -$               37$                 37$                 

Building 970,740        102,042        868,698        886,426        

Campsite Buildings & Roadwork 1,079,960    495,534        584,426        596,353        

Furnishings 23,097           15,826$        7,271             8,078             

Computer Equip 14,754           14,519           235                 336                 

Equipment 52,260           50,580           1,679             1,866             

Generator - Camp NorWes 30,500           21,505           8,995             11,244           

Camp equipment 65,164           58,818           6,346             7,932             

2,236,512$  758,826$      1,477,686$  1,512,272$  
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2019     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

4. Financial risks: 

Financial instruments consist of cash, due from related party and accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities. The fair values of financial instruments approximate their carrying values unless 

otherwise noted. The fair value of the employee future benefits payable is not determinable as 

there are no sets terms of repayment.  Risk management relates to the understanding and active 

management of risks associated with all areas of the NL Council and the associated operating 

environment.  Financial instruments are primarily exposed to credit and liquidity risk. 

 

(a) Credit risk: 

 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 

resulting in a financial loss.  Financial instruments which are potentially subject to credit risk 

consist primarily of cash and trade receivables. The amount of credit exposure is limited with 

its cash balance by only maintaining cash and investments with major Canadian financial 

institutions. There is no significant exposure to any one individual or organization. 

 

(b) Liquidity risk: 

 

Liquidity risk is defined as not being unable to meet cash requirements in a timely and cost-

effective manner. Liquidity requirements are managed through the receipt of funds from 

different revenue sources.  These sources of funds are used to pay operating expenses. 

 

 

5. Deposits held for related Scout Groups: 

 

Certain Scout Groups operate under the auspices of the NL Council and do not have a separate 

charter to hold assets.  Therefore, any unused assets are held by the NL Council, though 

Properties Inc, for a specified time unless such funds are requested to be expended. Funds 

remaining in excess of the specified time are no longer available to those Scout Groups and are 

invested for the benefit of Newfoundland and Labrador Scouting. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2019     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

6. Related party transactions: 

 

a) Effective September 1, 2013, the National Operation assumed ownership from the Regional 

and Provincial Councils all the Scout Shops across Canada.  As part of the transfer of 

ownership of the Scouts Shops, the National Operation committed to paying the Regional 

and Provincial Councils 2% of the gross sales of the Scout Shops in their region.   

b) Effective September 1, 2015 the National Operation ceased paying the Regional and 

Provincial Councils 2% of the gross sales of the Scout Shops on their region and provides no 

operational cost support to the NL Council or to Properties Inc. for operations at its property.  

 

c) Effective July 31, 2019, the National Operation ceased all activities related to its operation of 

a Scout Shop in Newfoundland and Labrador. 

 

d) The National Operation has incurred $Nil (2018 - $1,231) for the rental of the Camp Nor’Wes 

site. 

 

e) Effective September 1, 2015 membership fees are collected from individual members of the 

Newfoundland and Labrador Council, primarily at the group level, and paid directly the 

National Office. No funds for membership are retained by the Council. 

 

f) The National operation has a defined benefit pension plan that covers most of its employees, 

and a defined contribution pension plan for the remaining full-time employees.  The National 

operation also provides its employees with other employee future benefits, including health 

and life insurance benefits.  Effective September 1, 2015 the National Operation assumed all 

liabilities and administers all such employee plans at its expense.  

 

g) Included in trade receivables at year end is $8,141 (2018 - $3,288) owing from Scouts Canada, 

National operations.  

 

h) During the fiscal year, Properties Inc. was awarded operating and grant revenue $Nil (2018 - 

Nil) from Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc.  

 

i) During the fiscal year, the NL Council. was awarded operating and grant revenue $Nil (2018 - 

Nil) from Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc.  
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2019     

(Unaudited)     
       

 

        

6. Related Party Transactions (continued): 

 

j) Included in trade receivables at year end is $19,679 (2018 - $10,704) owing from Scouts 

Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc. for net expenses on behalf of, 

and donations received and directed to, the Foundation. 

 

7. Economic interest: 

 

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc. (the “Foundation”) and 

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Properties Inc. (“Properties Inc.”) are both not-for-

profit organizations, incorporated under the laws of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 

and are controlled by Scouts Canada.  Properties Inc. hold legal title to real property operated for 

NL Council and the Foundation holds investments in order to provide sufficient income to make 

annual grants to NL Council for operations, programming and special projects as the Foundation’s 

Board of Directors may approve from time to time. During the year the Foundation revised its 

investment strategy for providing future support to Scouting activities through distinct Fund 

accounts, each with established guidelines providing for investment decisions and the 

distribution of income earned annually by each fund.  During the year, the Foundation had net 

assets of $415,922 (2018 - $415,328). 

 

These transactions between the parties are in the normal course of operations and have been 

valued in these financial statements at the exchange amount, which is the amount of 

consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 

 

8. Capital management: 

The NL Council overall objective for capital through Properties Inc. and the Foundation (the 

Parties) is to fund capital assets, future projects and activities, and ongoing operations, for the 

benefit of Scouting in Newfoundland and Labrador.  The Parties manage their capital by 

maintaining and monitoring restricted funds for specific purposes, future projects and other 

capital requirements.  The restricted funds are disclosed in the schedule to the financial 

statements. 

 

The Parties are not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and their approach to 

capital management remains unchanged from the prior year. 



⅔  

 

1. The Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation be amended to set the minimum number of 
Directors of the Corporation at three and maximum number of Directors of the Corporation at 
five. 







 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 







 



 



 



 



 





Proposed amendment to the motions to enact new governance by-laws for  

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Properties Inc. 

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc. 

 

Moved by:        

Seconded by:     

 

That Article 2 of the proposed by-law be amended as follows: 

1. Add new paragraph 2.01 as follows: 

A person is qualified to serve as a member of the Corporation if they are a registered 
member of Scouts Canada as defined in Article II.a.1.a. or Article II.a.1.b., of Scouts 
Canada By-law No. 2. 

2. Renumber proposed paragraphs 2.01, 2.02, and 2.03 to 2.02, 2.03, and 2.04 respectively. 

3. Add paragraph Article 2.05 

A Member who ceases to be a registered member of Scouts Canada under Article 
II.a.1.a. or Article II.a.1.b., of Scouts Canada By-law No. 2 shall immediately cease to be a 
Member of the Corporation. 

4. Renumber proposed paragraphs 2.04, 2.05, and 2.06 to 2.06, and 2.07, and 2.08 respectively. 

5. Change the references to paragraph “2.01” in proposed paragraphs 2.03 (to be re-numbered 
paragraph 2.04) and paragraph 4.01 to paragraph “2.02”. 



BY-LAW No. 1

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Properties Inc.

(the “Corporation”)

A by-law relating to the transaction of the business and affairs of Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & 
Labrador) Properties Inc, hereinafter called "the Corporation”.

NOW THEREFORE the Corporation, by its Members and Directors, hereby enacts the following by-law: 

Article 1. DEFINITIONS

1.01 In this By-law, the following terms shall have the respective meanings set out below unless the 
context otherwise specifies or requests:

a) “Act” means the Corporations Act, RSNL1990 c.C-36, as amended, and includes any Act or 
Acts substituted therefor,

b) "By-law” means this By-law,

c) "Council” means the Newfoundland and Labrador Council of Scouts Canada,

d) "Council Commissioner" means the person duly appointed to that office by Scouts Canada,

e) "Council Youth Commissioner" means the person duly appointed to that office by Scouts 
Canada,

f) "Directors” means the directors elected or appointed pursuant to Article 5 of this By-law,

g) "Governance Officers" means the persons elected or appointed pursuant to Article 7 of this 
By-law,

h) “Members” means the persons elected or appointed pursuant to Article 2 of this By-law,

i) "Operating Officers" means the persons elected or appointed pursuant to Article 8 of this 
By-law,

j) "Scouts Canada” means the corporation incorporated under the Scouts Canada Act,
S.C. 2007, c.38, as amended, and includes any Act or Acts substituted therefor, and

k) "Youth” means a youth member as defined in By-law No. 2 of Scouts Canada who is a 
registered member of the Newfoundland and Labrador Council of Scouts Canada.

Article 2. MEMBERS

2.01 A person is qualified to serve as a member of the Corporation if they are a registered member of 
Scouts Canada as defined in Article ll.a.I.a. or Article ll.a.I.b., of Scouts Canada By-law No. 2.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Properties Inc. By-law No. 1,
January 2021 Page 1

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2.02 The Members of the Corporation are the persons who hold the following offices on October 15 
annually in the Newfoundland and Labrador Council of Scouts Canada:

a) the Council Commissioner,

b) the Council Youth Commissioner,

c) the Directors of the Corporation,

d) the Group Commissioner of each Group chartered by the Council,

e) a person designated by each Baden-Powell Guild chartered by the Canadian Fellowship of 
Baden-Powell Guilds to operate in Newfoundland and Labrador;

f) the President of each Rover Crew in the Council or a member of the Crew elected by the 
Crew,

g) the President of each Venturer Company in the Council or a member of the Company 
elected by the Company, and

h) a person designated by each Group named in Schedule A of this By-law.

2.03 In the event that two or more persons share the office of Council Commissioner, Council Youth 
Commissioner, Group Commissioner, Guildmaster, Crew President, or Company President, the 
persons who share an office shall decide who shall exercise the vote attached to it.

2.04 A Member holds office until they cease to hold the office or designation listed in paragraph 2.02.

2.05 A Member who ceases to be a registered member of Scouts Canada under Article ll.a.I.a. or
Article ll.a.I.b., of Scouts Canada By-law No. 2 shall immediately cease to be a Member of the 
Corporation.

2.06 A Member may resign their office by filing written notice of their intention to do so with the 
Secretary.

2.07 A Member shall be deemed to have resigned their membership upon leaving the office which 
qualified them for membership.

2.08 The Members may revoke a Member’s membership privileges for cause on a majority vote at a 
special meeting call for that purpose. When calculating the majority required to be pass a 
resolution under this paragraph, the number of Members shall be rounded up to the next higher 
whole number.

Article 3. MEETINGS OF THE MEMBERS

3.01 The Members may hold meetings in person or by telephone or by any other telecommunication 
or videoconferencing facility provided that all Members participating in the meeting can hear 
each other.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Properties Inc. By-law No. 1,
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3.02 The Members shall meet annually within 180 days of the end of the Corporation's financial year 
at a time designated by the Directors, provided that no more than 15 months shall elapse 
between such meetings.

3.03 At annual meetings, the Directors shall present to the Members a report on the affairs of the 
Corporation for the previous year, including

a) a financial statement of the Corporation,

b) the auditor's report thereon, if any, as required by the Act,

c) a report the state and condition of the Corporation’s affairs,

d) the election of Directors, and,

e) such other information or reports relating to the Corporation's affairs as the Directors may 
determine.

3.04 The Chair may call special meetings of the Corporation. In the Chair's absence or in the event of 
the Chair’s inability to act, the Vice-Chair may call special meetings.

3.05 Five Members may requisition a special meeting of the Members by submitting a written request 
to the Secretary stating the object of the meeting.

3.06 Upon the receipt of such requisition, the Directors shall convene a special meeting of the
Members. If a requisitioned meeting is not convened within 21 days, any five Members, may 
convene a meeting within 90 days from the date of the original requisition.

3.07 The Members, the Directors, and the auditor, if any, shall receive 14 days’ notice of meetings.
The notice shall include:

a) the place of the meeting or electronic access information for the meeting,

b) the day and the hour of meeting, and,

c) the agenda for the meeting, including the text of any special resolution on the agenda.

3.08 The failure to receive notice by any person entitled to receive it shall not invalidate the 
proceedings or any resolution passed at any such meeting of the Members.

3.09 No business shall be transacted at any meeting of the Members unless a quorum of 30% of the 
complement of Members is present or represented by proxy at the commencement of such 
business. When calculating the quorum, the calculated number of Members required to be 
present in person and by proxy shall be rounded up to the next higher whole number.

3.10 If a quorum is not present within one hour from the time appointed for the meeting of the 
Members requisitioned by the Members, it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the 
following week at the same time and place. The meeting is deemed dissolved if at such 
adjourned meeting, a quorum of Members is not then present.
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3.11 If neither the Chair nor Vice-Chair is present or able to act as chair then the Members present 
shall choose a Director as chair. If no Director is present or if all the Directors present decline to 
act as chair then the Members present shall choose a Member to be chair.

3.12 At a meeting of the Members, the chair shall, in the event of a tie vote on any motion, have a 
casting vote in addition to their personal vote.

3.13 The chair may, with the consent of the meeting, adjourn any meeting of the Members from time 
to time and from place to place. No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other 
than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which adjournment took place.

3.14 The chair shall declare all motions and resolutions carried or lost. Unless the chair or any eight 
Members present and entitled to vote at the meeting demand a poll, the entry of the chair's 
declaration in the Corporation’s book of proceedings is presumptive proof of that fact.

3.15 The chair may determine the manner of taking a poll at such time and place and either at once or 
after an interval or adjournment or otherwise as the chair may direct. The person who demands
a poll may withdraw the demand. The chair shall resolve any dispute that occurs over the 
admission or rejection of a vote, and such determination made in good faith shall be final and 
conclusive. A meeting shall not be adjourned while a poll demanded on the election of the chair 
or on any question of adjournment is pending. The demand of a poll shall not prevent the 
continuance of a meeting for the transaction of any business.

3.16 The chair shall count the votes cast in a poll and declare the motion or resolution carried or lost. 
The entry of the chair's declaration in the Corporation's book of proceedings is presumptive 
proof of that fact.

Article 4. MEMBERS' VOTING RIGHTS

4.01 Except where this By-law specifically states otherwise, each person who is qualified to be a
Member of the Corporation under two or more sub-paragraphs of paragraph 2.02 of this By-law 
shall, notwithstanding their multiple qualifications for Member status, have only one vote at 
meetings of the Corporation.

4.02 Subject to paragraphs 4.03, 4.04, and 4.05 Members who are unable to attend a meeting of the 
Members may give another Member a proxy to cast their vote.

4.03 If a Member who represents a Venturer Company is unable to attend a meeting of the Members, 
they may give a proxy to cast their vote to another member of their Company or to a Member 
who represents another Venturer Company.

4.04 If a Member who represents a Rover Crew is unable to attend a meeting of the Members, they 
may give a proxy to cast their vote to another member of their Crew or to a Member who 
represents another Rover Crew.

4.05 If a Member who represents a Baden-Powell Guild is unable to attend a meeting of the
Members, they may give a proxy to cast their vote to another member of their Guild or to a 
Member who represents another Guild.
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4.06 A Member who gives a proxy shall file notice that they have done so to the Secretary at least 24 
hours prior to the start of the meeting for which the proxy is effective. A notice of proxy may be 
delivered electronically or by paper and shall bear the signature of the Member giving it.

4.07 The Members shall vote by voice, a show of hands, or secret ballot as determined by the chair 
unless this By-law specifically provides otherwise.

Article 5. DIRECTORS

5.01 Subject to the Articles of Incorporation, the Directors shall manage the affairs of the 
Corporation.

5.02 The Members shall elect the Directors at the Corporation's annual meeting.

5.03 The Directors shall exercise all powers of the Corporation which are not by this By-law or
otherwise by law expressly assigned to the Members.

5.04 No regulation made in a meeting of the Members shall invalidate any validly made prior act of 
the Directors.

5.05 Each Director serves until their successor is elected or appointed.

5.06 If a Director leaves their office between annual meetings, the Council Commissioner shall
appoint a Member to replace the outgoing Director. The replacement Director shall serve the 
remainder of the replaced Director's term.

5.07 In the event of a vacancy or vacancies amongst the Directors, the continuing Directors may act; 
but if the number of Directors falls below three, they shall not act except to call a meeting to 
request the Council Commissioner to fill the vacancy or vacancies.

5.08 Subject to the following provisos, a person is qualified to act as a Director of the Corporation

a) If they have attained the full age of 19 years, and

b) If they have not been declared bankrupt or found of unsound mind by a court in Canada or 
elsewhere.

5.09 A Director who acquires the status of a bankrupt or becomes of unsound mind and is so found 
shall immediately cease to be a Director.

5.10 A majority of the Directors shall be resident Canadians.

5.11 The Directors may not transact business unless a majority of the Directors who are resident 
Canadians are present at the meeting or approve the business conducted at it in writing.

5.12 A Director may not receive any remuneration for their services as Directors.

5.13 If a Director is called upon to perform extra services or to make any special exertions for any of 
the purposes of the Corporation or the business thereof, the Corporation may remunerate them 
at a rate determined by the other Directors.
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5.14 A Director may on such terms as to remuneration and otherwise as the other Directors may
determine, hold any other office under the Corporation or under any corporation or company in 
which the Corporation is a shareholder or member or is otherwise interested.

Article 6. MEETINGS OF THE DIRECTORS

6.01 The Directors may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their 
meetings and proceedings as they see fit. A quorum for the transaction of business at any 
meeting of the Directors shall be 50% plus one of the complement of Directors. When 
calculating the quorum, the calculated number of persons required to be present shall be 
rounded up to the next higher whole number.

6.02 Unless otherwise provided:

a) the Directors may meet at the close of every meeting of the Members without notice,

b) notice of every meeting of the Directors shall be delivered, mailed, telephoned, emailed, or 
communicated orally to each Director at least 48 hours before the time fixed for the 
meeting, and

c) the Directors may meet without the notice specified above if all the Directors are present or 
if those absent have signified their assent to such meeting or their consent to the business 
transacted at such meeting.

6.03 The Directors may hold meetings in person or by telephone or by other telecommunication or 
videoconferencing facility provided that all Directors participating in the meeting can hear each 
other.

6.04 A Director may requisition a meeting of the Directors by submitting a written request to the
Secretary stating the object of the meeting. Upon receiving a request to convene a meeting, the 
Secretary shall schedule it at such time and place as the Chair may specify.

6.05 The Chair shall chair meetings of the Directors. The Vice-Chair shall chair all meetings of the 
Directors in the absence of the Chair or in the event of the Chair's inability to act.

6.06 In the event of a tie vote on any motion at a Directors meeting, the chair shall have a casting 
vote in addition to their personal vote.

6.07 Unless otherwise provided, a majority of Directors present and voting is sufficient to decide any 
matter at a meeting of the Directors.

6.08 A meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or 
any of the authority, power and discretion vested in or exercisable by the Directors.

6.09 Except as specifically prohibited by law, the Directors may appoint such committees as it sees 
fit. The President shall be an ex officio member of all such committees.
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6.10 No act by the Directors or a committee of Director or by any person acting as a Director shall be 
invalidated because a defect in the appointment of the director, committee, or person so acting 
is subsequently discovered.

6.11 In lieu of meeting, a resolution in writing signed by all Directors entitled to vote on that 
resolution if it was considered at a meeting of the Directors shall be as valid and effectual as if it 
had been passed at a meeting of Directors. Such resolution may be signed electronically or by 
counterparts or both.

Article 7. GOVERNANCE OFFICERS

7.01 The Directors shall elect the Governance Officers at a meeting convened immediately following 
the annual meeting of the Members.

7.02 The Governance Officers shall serve until the election of their successors at the next annual 
meeting of the Corporation.

7.03 The Chair shall act as chair of the annual meeting and any special meetings of the Members.
They shall perform the governance duties that are usual to the office of Chair of the Board of 
Directors and any other duties assigned by the Directors.

7.04 The Vice-Chair shall assist the Chair when and as requested. The Vice-Chair shall preside at all 
meetings in the absence of the Chair or in the event of the Chair's inability to act. When acting 
as chair at any meeting, the Vice-Chair will have the rights and authority of the Chair.

Article 8. OPERATING OFFICERS

8.01 The Council Commissioner is the President and Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation.

8.02 The Council Youth Commissioner is the Vice-President and Deputy Chief Operating Officer of 
the Corporation.

8.03 The Directors shall elect the Secretary and the Treasurer at a meeting convened immediately 
following the annual meeting of the Members.

8.04 The Secretary is the Officer responsible for:

a) taking minutes of all meetings of the Members and the Directors and any committees of the 
Corporation,

b) maintaining the Corporation's records and

c) such other matters and things as assigned to them by the Directors.

8.05 The Secretary shall provide copies of minutes to the Members and the Directors and ensure
timely notification of meetings of the Members and the Directors. The Secretary shall perform 
all duties that are usual to that office and such other duties as assigned to them by the Directors.
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8.06 The Treasurer is the Officer responsible for:

a) the safekeeping, banking, and investment of the Corporation's assets,

b) the production of accurate financial statements for submission to the Members at its annual 
meeting, and,

c) such other matters and things as assigned to them by the Directors.

8.07 The Treasurer shall have general supervision over all the funds received by the Corporation from
any source whatsoever and the disbursement of same subject to the direction of the Directors 
and ensure that an adequate accounting system is in place.

8.08 The Operating Officers are responsible for

a) the day to day operation of the Corporation, and

b) ensuring that the Corporation operates complies with Scouts Canada’s applicable policies 
and procedures.

8.09 A President’s or Vice-President’s term of office ends when Scouts Canada appoints their
successor to the office of Council Commissioner or Council Youth Commissioner, as the case 
may be.

8.10 If an Operating Officer resigns their office, the Directors may appoint a replace to serve until the 
next annual general meeting of the members.

Article 9. COMMITTEES GENERALLY

9.01 The provisions of this Article apply to committees of the Corporation created under this and any 
other by-law of the Corporation.

9.02 The Directors may by resolution appoint committees in addition to those specifically created 
under this or any other by-law of the Corporation for any purpose and shall renew each such 
committee’s mandate annually.

9.03 The term of office for committee members shall be one year and a person may serve no more 
than six consecutive terms.

9.04 The Directors may, by majority vote, remove a member of a committee from office for cause.

9.05 Within 30 days of a vacancy occurring on a committee occurring, the Directors shall appoint a 
person to fill the vacant position by resolution.

9.06 Unless a by-law provides otherwise, a committee shall annually elect from its members a person 
to serve as its chair within 30 days of the Corporation’s annual general meeting.

9.07 If a committee chair resigns, the committee shall elect a new chair from its members within 30 
days of the previous chair’s resignation.
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9.08 A committee chair shall:

a) supervise and direct the work of the committee;

b) undertake administrative duties as necessary to oversee and implement the work of the 
committee; and

c) preside at meetings of the committee.

9.09 A committee may meet for the dispatch of business, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their 
meetings and proceedings as its members see fit.

9.10 A quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of a committee shall be 50% plus one 
of the complement of its members. When calculating the quorum, the calculated number of 
persons required to be present shall be rounded up to a whole number.

9.11 In the event of a vacancy or vacancies in a committee, the continuing committee members may 
act, but if the number of committee members falls below three, the committee shall not act 
except to call a meeting to request the Directors to fill the vacancy or vacancies.

9.12 A committee member may requisition a meeting of the committee at any time by giving notice 
to all committee members as provided herein.

9.13 Unless otherwise provided:

a) notice of every meeting of a committee shall be delivered, mailed, telephoned, emailed or 
communicated orally to each committee member at least 48 hours before the time fixed for 
the meeting; and

b) committee may meet without the notice specified above if all the committee members are 
present or if those absent have signified their assent to such meeting or their consent to the 
business transacted at such meeting.

9.14 Each committee member shall have one vote on all business transacted at any meeting of a 
committee. In the event of a tie vote, the chair of the committee shall have a casting vote in 
addition to their personal vote.

9.15 A majority of committee members present and voting is sufficient to decide any matter before a 
committee.

9.16 A committee may hold meetings in person or by telephone or other telecommunication or 
videoconferencing facility provided that all Committee members participating in the meeting 
can hear each other.

9.17 A resolution in writing signed by all committee members entitled to vote on that resolution if it 
was considered at a meeting of committee members shall be as valid and effectual as if it had 
been passed at a meeting of Committee members. Such resolution may be signed electronically 
or by counterparts or both.
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Article 10. NOMINATING COMMITTEE

10.01 The Corporation’s Nominating Committee shall consist of three members. A Director shall chair 
the Nominating Committee and appoint the remaining members of the Committee, who need 
not be Directors.

10.02 The Nominating Committee shall make an open call for persons to express their interest in 
serving as a Director no later than 60 days prior to the annual meeting.

10.03 The Nominating Committee shall prepare and submit to the annual meeting, a report listing 
candidates who have expressed a willingness to serve as directors which shall be circulated to 
the Members no later than 30 days prior to the annual meeting.

Article 11. BORROWING AND CHARGING POWERS

11.01 The Corporation may from time to time:

a) borrow or raise money or secure the payment of money or the performance of any 
guarantee in such manner as the Directors may think fit,

b) by a Director or Officer sign or endorse bills, notes, acceptance, cheques, contracts, and 
other evidence of or securities for money borrowed or to be borrowed for the purposes 
previously mentioned, and

c) pledge debentures as security for loans, bonds, debentures, and other securities, free from 
any equities between the Corporation and the person to whom such securities were issued.

Article 12. FINANCIAL SERVICES ARRANGEMENTS

12.01 The Corporation shall transact its banking business and other financial services with such banks, 
trust companies or other firms or corporations as the Directors may designate, appoint, or 
authorize from time to time by resolution.

12.02 Two or more persons designated by a resolution of the Directors shall transact the Corporation's 
banking and other financial services, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing,

a) the operating of the Corporation's bank and investment accounts,

b) the making, signing, drawing, accepting, endorsing, negotiating, depositing, or transferring of 
any cheques, promissory notes, drafts, acceptances, bills of exchange and orders for the 
payment of money, the giving of receipts for and orders relating to any property of the 
Corporation,

c) the issuing of trading instructions on the Corporations investments,

d) the executing of any agreement relating to any banking business and other financial services 
and defining the rights and powers of the parties thereto, and,
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e) the authorizing of any officer of such banker to do any act or thing on the Corporation's 
behalf to facilitate such banking business.

Article 13. REGISTERS AND RECORDS

13.01 The Directors shall keep at the Corporation’s registered office or at such other place or places as 
the Directors may direct a register of the Members of the Corporation, a register of the bond and 
debenture holders of the Corporation, and a register of its Directors.

13.02 The Directors shall cause records keep in books designated for recording:

a) the Articles of Incorporation and By-laws of the Corporation and any amendments thereto,

b) the names of the Members and Directors of the Corporation,

c) all orders made by the Directors and committees of the Directors, and,

d) all minutes of meetings and resolutions of the Members, the Directors, and its committees.

13.03 The Secretary shall sign the Minutes of a meeting of the Members or the Directors or of any 
committee of the Directors. Once signed, such minutes are presumptive proof of the matter 
stated in them.

Article 14. REGISTERED OFFICE

14.01 The Directors may from time to time by resolution fix the location of the registered office of the 
Corporation within the place in the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador designated as such 
in its Articles of Incorporation.

Article 15. THE SEAL

15.01 The Secretary shall have custody of the Seal of the Corporation.

15.02 The Secretary shall, if required, affix the seal to any contract, agreement, document, or 
instrument in writing requiring execution by the Corporation and all such other kinds of 
documents as directed from time to time by the Directors.

15.03 The Secretary shall use the seal only with the prior approval of the Directors.

Article 16. EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS

16.01 The President shall execute all contracts, agreements, documents, or any instruments in writing 
requiring execution by the Corporation.

16.02 The Vice-President shall execute such documents in the President's absence or incapacity.

16.03 The Secretary shall also sign the same and affix the seal of the Corporation, if required.
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Article 17. FINANCIAL YEAR

17.01 The financial year of the Corporation shall start on September 1 of each year and terminate on 
August 31.

Article 18. ACCOUNTS

18.01 The Corporation shall keep accounting records at its Registered Office or at such other place or 
places as the Directors may direct. Such records shall be open during the Corporation's business 
hours for inspection by the Members.

18.02 The Corporation shall from time to time determine the conditions under which the accounts and 
the records of the Corporation shall be open to the inspection of persons not being Members.

18.03 The Directors shall approve the Corporation’s financial statements and designate two Directors 
to sign them to signify such approval.

18.04 The Directors shall send copies of the comparative financial statements, the auditors' report, if 
any, and the report of the Directors to all Members at least seven days before the date of the 
annual meeting at which the reports are to be presented.

Article 19. AUDITORS AND AUDIT

19.01 The Members may at the annual meeting appoint an auditor or auditors to hold office until the 
next annual meeting.

19.02 The Directors may fill any vacancy in the office of auditor but while any such vacancy continues 
the surviving or continuing auditor or auditors, if any, may act.

Article 20. NOTICES

20.01 The Corporation may serve any notice required by the Act or this By-law on a Member, a 
Director, an Officer, or an auditor, if any, by personal service or by mail.

20.02 Notices sent by mail are deemed received three days after the letter containing the same and 
properly addressed was delivered to the post office.

20.03 By consenting in writing, all the persons entitled to vote may convene a meeting by a shorter 
notice and in any manner, they think fit. If all the persons entitled to vote at it are present at a 
meeting, notice of the time, place and purpose of the meeting may be waived.

Article 21. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

21.01 The Directors and Officers of the Corporation and the members of its committees are subject to 
the same conflict of interest policies, regulations and rules as Scouts Canada imposes on its 
Board of Governors.
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Article 22. PROTECTION AND INDEMNITY

22.01 The Corporation shall indemnify the Directors or Officers, former Directors or Officers, members 
and former members of a committee of the Corporation, or any person who acts or acted at the 
Corporation's request as a Director or Officer of a body corporate of which the Corporation is or 
was a shareholder or creditor and their heirs and legal representatives against all costs, charges 
and expenses including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment reasonably 
incurred by them in respect of any civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which 
they are a party by reason of being or having been a Director or Officer of such corporation or 
body corporate if they acted honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interest of the 
Corporation, and in the case of a criminal or administrative action or proceeding enforced by a 
monetary penalty, they had reasonable grounds for believing that their conduct was lawful.

22.02 The Corporation shall also indemnify such Directors or Officers who have been substantially 
successful in the defence of any civil, criminal, or administrative action or proceeding to which 
they are a party by reason of being or having been a director or officer of the corporation or body 
corporate against all costs, charges and expenses they reasonably incur in respect of such action 
or proceeding.

22.03 Unless a Director or Officer breaches their duties to the Corporation, in the absence of
dishonesty on their part, they is not liable for the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other 
Director or Officer, or for joining in any receipts or other acts for conformity, or for any loss or 
expense happening to the Corporation through the insufficiency or deficiency of title to any 
property acquired by order of the Directors for or on behalf of the Corporation, or through the 
insufficiency of any security in or upon one of the Corporation's investments, or for any loss or 
damage arising from the bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of any person holding monies, 
securities or effects of the Corporation, or for any loss occasioned by errors of judgment or 
oversight on their part, or for any other loss, damage or misfortune whatsoever which happens 
in the execution of the duties of their office or in relation thereto.

22.04 The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance for the benefit of any director or officer 
against liabilities, costs, charges, and expenses sustained or incurred by such director or officer 
for failure to exercise the care, diligence, and skill that a reasonably prudent person would 
exercise in comparable circumstances.

Article 23. AMENDMENTS TO THIS BY-LAW

23.01 The Directors may amend Schedule A of this By-law to add a Group to it by unanimous
resolution. Such amendment shall be subject to ratification by the Members at the next annual 
meeting of the Members.

23.02 Subject to paragraph 23.01, only Members may propose amendments to this By-law.

23.03 The Members may consider amendments to this By-law only at the annual meeting.

23.04 A proposer shall give the Secretary notice of an amendment to this By-law no less than three 
weeks before the date fixed for the annual meeting.
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23.05 The Secretary shall forward a copy of all proposed amendments to this By-law to each Member 
within five days of receipt of same.

23.06 A majority of the Members present and voting is required to approve any amendment to this 
By-law.

23.07 Amendments to this By-law other than an amendment made under paragraph 23.01 shall come 
into force upon receiving the approval of the Board of Governors of Scouts Canada.

Article 24. GENERAL

24.01 In this By-law, where the context requires or permits, words importing the singular number shall 
include the plural and vice versa and words importing the use of any gender shall include all 
genders.

24.02 The division of this By-law into articles and paragraphs and the insertion of headings are for
convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this By­
law.

24.03 If any provision of this By-law is held to be invalid, void, voidable or unenforceable for any
reason, then the particular provision will be deemed severed from the remainder of this By-law 
and all remaining provisions of this By-law shall remain in full force and effect.

This By-law is hereby enacted by the Members and Directors of the Corporation effective January 16, 2021.

Secretary
Council Team Lead, Corporate Governance
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Schedule A
Groups Holding Real Estate

1. 1st Cowan Heights Group, a parcel at Pasturelands, Foxtrap originally granted to 1st Curtis 
Group

2. 1st Conception Bay South Group, a parcel at Salmonier Line, known as Camp St. George

3. 1st MacPherson Group, a parcel at Bauline South, known as Camp MacShack

4. 1st Mount Pearl Lions, a party to the Camp Morristown joint ownership agreement, a parcel at 
Pasturelands, Foxtrap, known as Camp Morristown

5. 1st Paradise, a party to the Camp Morristown joint ownership agreement, a parcel at 
Pasturelands, Foxtrap, known as Camp Morristown

6. 2nd Stephenville, two parcels at Camp Ashanti
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BY-LAW NO. 2

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Properties Inc.

(the “Corporation”)

CAMP NOR'WES FUND BY-LAW

A by-law to regulate the Corporation’s management and control of a campsite investment fund and to 
establish the administrative structure of the Corporation which manages its Camp Nor'Wes Fund.

WHEREAS:

A. The Corporation manages a fund toward the advancement of the objects of its Articles of 
Incorporation;

B. The Corporation wishes to create a fund which would permit it to receive funds to support 
development and enhancement of program delivery at these campsites and to support the 
Newfoundland and Labrador Council of Scouts Canada to further the goals of Scouts Canada's 
National Camping Strategy;

C. The members of the Corporation wish to ensure that the funds held in the Camp Nor’Wes Fund are 
maintained solely to attain the objects set out in this by-law; and

D. The Corporation has determined that it is desirable and necessary to enact this by-law to establish 
the Camp Nor’Wes Fund and the administrative structure of the Corporation which manages the 
Camp Nor'Wes Fund.

NOW THEREFORE the Corporation, by its Members and Directors, hereby enacts the following by-law: 

Article 1. TITLE

1.01 This By-law may be called the "Camp Nor'Wes Fund By-law”.

Article 2. DEFINITIONS

2.01 "Camp Nor'Wes Fund" means the current fund of the Corporation, consisting of the amount of 
$100.00 donated by an anonymous donor on December 14, 2018 and shall further include:

a) any additional funds that the Corporation may add to the fund from time to time;

b) any property in which the fund may be invested by the Corporation from time to time, as 
well as any additions or accretions thereto; and

c) any income derived from any of the foregoing,

but shall exclude all amounts which have been paid or disbursed from the fund in accordance 
with this By-law.

2.02 In this By-law, the following terms shall have the respective meanings set out below unless the 
context otherwise specifies or requests:
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a) “Camp Nor'Wes Fund Capital" means

(i) the amount of $100.00 donated by an anonymous donor on December 14, 2018;

(ii) any funds designated by resolution of the Directors from time to time;

(iii) any capital gains income earned during each calendar year and designated by resolution 
of the Directors.

b) “Council" means the Newfoundland and Labrador Council of Scouts Canada;

c) "Disbursement Advisory Committee" means the Committee established under Article 6 of 
this By-law;

d) “Fund" means the Camp Nor'Wes Fund;

e) "Investment Advisory Committee" means the Committee established under Article 6 of this 
By-law;

f) "Members" has the meaning established in the Corporation’s By-law No. 1,

g) "Objects" has the meaning set out in paragraph 3.02,

h) "Scouts Canada" means the corporation incorporated under the Scouts Canada Act,
S.C. 2007, c.38 as amended, and includes any Act or Acts substituted therefor,

i) "Secretary" means the officer appointed under By-law No. 1 of the Corporation; and

j) “Youth" means a youth member as defined in By-law No. 2 of Scouts Canada who is a 
registered member of the Newfoundland and Labrador Council of Scouts Canada.

Article 3. ESTABLISHMENT OF THE FUND

3.01 The Fund is hereby established. The Corporation may at any time add to, and invest all or any 
portion of, the Fund.

3.02 The use of the Camp Nor'Wes Fund is restricted to the following Objects:

a) providing support to maintain the existing infrastructure support at Camp Nor'Wes;

b) providing support to develop new existing infrastructure support at Camp Nor’Wes;

c) providing support to acquire reusable assets required to directly deliver program to youth at 
campsites in the province; and

d) providing support to enable the Council to further the goals of Scouts Canada's National 
Camping Strategy in Newfoundland and Labrador.

3.03 Under no circumstances shall any portion of the Fund be deviated for use for any purpose other 
than the Objects.
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Article 4. MANAGEMENT OF THE FUND

4.01 The Fund operates an investment portfolio for the purpose of meeting its Objects.

4.02 The Fund may maintain separate yield and capital-protected portfolios as appropriate to meet
differing Objects.

4.03 Camp Nor'Wes Fund Capital may not be withdrawn from the Fund.

4.04 Camp Nor'Wes Fund Capital may not be pledged.

4.05 The Fund may not make loans.

Article 5. ROLE OF DIRECTORS

5.01 Unless the Directors appoint committees under Article 6 or Article 7 of this By-law, all 
responsibilities of the Investment Advisory Committee or the Disbursement Advisory Committee 
shall be the responsibilities of the Directors with the necessary changes.

5.02 Upon recommendation of

a) the Investment Advisory Committee the Directors shall establish policies for the investment 
of the Fund; and

b) the Disbursement Committee the Directors shall establish policies for expenditure and 
disbursement from the Fund.

Article 6. INVESTMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

6.01 The Directors may appoint a committee (the “Investment Advisory Committee”) to manage the 
investments held by the Fund in a manner that is consistent with prudent financial management 
practices by, among other things, carrying out the following duties and responsibilities:

a) managing the Fund’s investments;

b) managing the Fund’s Statement of Investment Policies and Procedures;

c) managing the Corporation's relationship with its investment advisors;

d) preparing and presenting to the Directors no later than the 15th day of September, January, 
and June, a report current to the end of the previous month outlining the investments held 
by the Fund and income received by it since the Committee's last report; and.

e) maintaining adequate records of Committee minutes, resolutions, decisions and other 
proceedings.

6.02 When appointing committee members, the Directors shall consider the skills and vocations
necessary to manage the Corporation’s invested assets and its relationship with its investment 
advisors.

6.03 At least one member of the committee shall be a Director.
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6.04 The Treasurer the Corporation is a member of the Investment Advisory Committee.

6.05 The Secretary of the Corporation is the secretary of the Investment Advisory Committee.

6.06 The Investment Advisory Committee is subject to Article 9 of the Corporation's By-law No. 1.

Article 7. DISBURSEMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE

7.01 The Directors may appoint a committee (the “Disbursement Advisory Committee") carry out the 
following duties and responsibilities:

a) managing and controlling all disbursements from the Fund;

b) preparing and presenting to the Directors by the 15th day of September, January, and June, a 
report current to the end of the previous month that includes all disbursements from the 
Fund for the period since the Committee’s last report; and

c) maintaining adequate records of Committee minutes, resolutions, decisions and other 
proceedings.

7.02 At least one member of the Disbursement Committee shall be a Director.

7.03 At least one member of the Disbursement Advisory Committee shall be a Youth.

7.04 The Treasurer the Corporation is a member of the Disbursement Advisory Committee.

7.05 The Secretary of the Corporation is the secretary of the Disbursement Advisory Committee.

7.06 The Disbursement Advisory Committee is subject to Article 8 of the Corporation’s By-law No. 1.

Article 8. AMENDMENTS TO THIS BY-LAW

8.01 Only Members may propose amendments to this By-law.

8.02 The Members may consider amendments to this By-law only at the annual meeting.

8.03 A proposer shall give the Secretary notice of an amendment to this By-law no less than three 
weeks before the date fixed for the annual meeting.

8.04 The Secretary shall forward a copy of all proposed amendments to this By-law to each Member 
within five days of receipt of same.

8.05 Separate unanimous votes of both the Members and Dirctors are required to pass an 
amendment to this By-law.

8.06 Amendments to this By-law shall come into force upon receiving the approval of the Board of 
Governors of Scouts Canada.
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Article 9. GENERAL

9.01 In this By-law, where the context requires or permits, words importing the singular number shall 
include the plural and vice versa and words importing the use of any gender shall include all 
genders.

9.02 The division of this By-law into articles and paragraphs and the insertion of headings are for
convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of this By­
law.

9.03 If any provision of this By-law is held to be invalid, void, voidable or unenforceable for any
reason, then the particular provision will be deemed severed from the remainder of this By-law 
and all remaining provisions of this By-law shall remain in full force and effect.

This By-law is hereby enacted by the Members and the Board of the Corporation effective January 16, 
2021.

Secretary L' '
Council Team Lead, Corporate Governance
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SCOUTS CANADA 

(NEWFOUNDLAND AND  

LABRADOR) PROPERTIES INC. 

Year ended August 31, 2020 
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Statement of Financial Position

August 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

(Unaudited)

2020 2019

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash 1,002,058$          72,712$                

Accounts receivable 27,705                  23,576                  

RBC Building fund 14,375                  14,375                  

Due from related party 19,389                  17,078                  

1,063,528            127,741                

Property and equipment (Note3) 586,723                1,477,686            

1,650,250$          1,605,426$          

LIABLITIES AND UNRESTRCITED NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable -                          -                          

Accrued liabilities 218,710                118,908                

Deferred revenue 6,934                     8,667                     

Deposits held for related Scout Groups -                          -                          

225,644                127,575                

Net assets

Restricted net assets 30,966                  30,966                  

Unrestricted net assets 1,393,640            1,446,885            

1,650,250$          1,605,426$          

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

_____________________________  Member    _________________________________  Member

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 

Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Statement of Operations 

August 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

(Unaudited)

2020 2019

Revenues

Fundraising -$                       3,127$                  

Government grants 38,649                  36,321                  

Trust Foundation grants -                          -                          

Other income 8,621                     28,452                  

Rental income 20,130                  47,055                  

67,400                  114,955                

Expenditures

Salaries and benefits 1,798$                  19,595$                

Office and general 1,480                     3,322                     

Amortization 14,995                  34,586                  

Travel -                          -                          

Professional fees 55,849                  10,173                  

Repairs and maintenance 14,325                  20,491                  

Fuel and propane 1,098                     4,837                     

Insurance 16,431                  18,352                  

Telephone 3,682                     3,970                     

Utilities 4,266                     4,424                     

Advertising -                          -                          

Vehicles 282                         642                         

Snow clearing and lawn care 6,181                     7,531                     

Training -                          -                          

Other 3,753                     2,751                     

Interest and bank changes 536                         532                         

Loss on disposal of assets (4,032)                   -                          

120,645                131,206                

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures ($53,245) ($16,251)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 

Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Statement of Cash Flows

August 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

(Unaudited)

2020 2019

Cash provided by (used in):

Operations:

(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenditures ($53,245) ($16,251)

Items not involving cash:

Amortization 14,995                  34,586                  

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (4,129)                   (67,597)                 

(Increase) decrease in due from related party (2,312)                   (13,722)                 

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses -                          -                          

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued

    liabilitities 99,802                  68,696                  

Transfer of cash to related party -                          -                          

Increase (decrease) in future employee benefits -                          -                          

(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue (1,733)                   (2,167)                   

Gain (loss) on sale of assets (4,032)                   -                          

49,346                  3,545                     

Investing:

Advances to related party -                          -                          

Purchase of property and equipment -                          -                          

Proceeds on sale of property and equipment 880,000                

880,000                -                          

Increase (Decrease) in cash 929,346                3,545                     

Cash, beginning of year 72,712                  69,167                  

Cash, end of year 1,002,058$          72,712$                

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 

Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

August 31, 2020, with comparative information for 2019

(Unaudited)

Restricted Unrestricted Investment in 2020 2019

Capital Assets

Net assets, beginning of year 30,966$             1,482,276$      ($35,391) 1,477,851$   1,494,102$    

Excess (deficiency) of revenue

over expenses -                      38,250-               (14,995)         (53,245)           (16,251)           

Disposal of assets -                      -                      -                  -                   -                    

Transfer -                      -                      -                  -                   -                    

Net assets, end of year 30,966$             1,444,026$      ($50,386) 1,424,606$   1,477,851$    

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and                                          

Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements     
       

Year ended August 31, 2020     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Properties Inc. (“Properties Inc.") is incorporated under 

the laws of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador as a not-for-profit organization and as such 

has no share capital and is exempt from the payment of income tax.  

 

The Newfoundland and Labrador Council (NL Council) is a regional council of Scouts Canada National 

Operation, which controls and operates Properties Inc. Scouts Canada is a national organization 

operating programs aimed at contributing to the education of young people through a value system 

based on the Scout Law and Promise, to help build a better world where people are self-fulfilled as 

individuals and play a constructive role in society.  Formerly called the Boy Scouts of Canada, the 

National Operation was incorporated on June 12, 1914 by an Act of the Canadian Parliament. 

        

1. Significant accounting policies: 

 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for 

not-for-profit organizations.  The Entity’s significant accounting polices are as follows: 

 

(a) Financial instruments: 

 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. Freestanding 

derivative instruments that are not in a qualifying hedging relationship and equity 

instruments that are quoted in an active market are subsequently measured at fair value. All 

other financial instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless 

management has elected to carry the instruments at fair value. The Entity has not elected to 

carry any such financial instruments at fair value. 

 

Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 

subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are 

adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing cost, which are amortized 

using the straight-line method. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 

Labrador) Properties Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2020     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal year 

if there are indicators of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the Entity 

determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future 

cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the expected 

cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the present 

value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from the selling of the 

financial asset or the amount the Entity expects to realize by exercising its right to any 

collateral. If events and circumstances reverse in a future year, an impairment loss will be 

reversed to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value. 

 

(b) Property and equipment: 

 

Capital assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization.  Amortization is provided 

using the declining-balance method at the following annual rates: 

 

 
The carrying amount of an item of property and equipment is tested for recoverability 

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 

recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognized when the asset’s carrying amount is not 

recoverable and exceeds its fair value. 

 

Asset Rate

Building 2%

Campsite Building & Roadwork 2%

Furniture and fixtures 10%

Equipment 10%

Camp Nor'Wes Equipment 20%

Vehicles 20%

Campsite equipment 20%

Computer 30%
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2020     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 

(c) Use of estimates: 

 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting 

standards for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 

contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 

amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates 

and assumptions include the carrying amounts of property and equipment. Actual results 

could differ from those estimates. 

 

(d) Revenue recognition: 

 

Camp and other fees are recognized as revenue in the applicable Restricted or Unrestricted 

fund in the fiscal year to which they relate. 

 

Properties Inc follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Unrestricted 

contributions are recognized as revenue in the period received. Externally restricted 

contributions are recognized as revenues in the period which the related expenses are 

incurred.  Pledges of contributions and fundraising revenues are recorded upon receipt since 

they cannot be reasonably estimated. Camp and other fees are recognized as revenue in the 

period to which they relate. 

 

(e) Contributed services: 

 

Volunteers contribute many hours to assist Properties Inc in the governance of its operations 

and programs.  Because of the difficulty in assessing the number of hours and their fair value, 

contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements. 

 

(f) Financial instruments: 

 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. All other financial 

instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has  
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2020     

(Unaudited)     
       

 

        

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 

elected to carry the instruments at fair value.  Properties Inc has not elected to carry any 

such financial instruments at fair value. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of 

 

financial instruments measured subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other 

financial instruments are adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing 

cost, which are amortized using the straight-line method. 

 

Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal year 

if there are indicators of impairment.  If there is an indicator of impairment, Properties Inc 

determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future 

cash flows from the financial asset.  If there is a significant adverse change in in the expected 

cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the present 

value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized in selling the financial 

asset or the amount Properties expects to realize by exercising its right to any collateral.  If 

events and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss will be reversed to 

the extend of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value.  

 

 

2. Property and equipment: 

Properties Inc. holds ownership of thirty-seven campsites and crown land leases which were 

either acquired when Scout groups ceased to operate or were transferred to Properties Inc 

through the NL Council.  Since these assets were acquired at no cost to Properties Inc., they have 

each been recorded by Properties Inc. at a value of $1. 

 

With the notification of cessation of operational activities by the National Operation in a specific 

asset (Note 6), Properties Inc. commenced a review to determine viability of continued use of 

that asset, ultimately placing the asset for sale. The sale was completed July 31, 2020. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2020     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

2. Property and equipment (continued): 

 

 
 

3. Contingencies: 

Government grants: 

 

During the fiscal year, the Properties Inc received $25,000 (2019 - $25,000) in revenue from 

government grants.  These grants are for contracts with certain terms and conditions that may 

require that advances be repaid if the terms and conditions are not fulfilled.  Wage grants 

awarded to NL Council and managed by Properties Inc. amounting to $Nil (2019 - $9,357) are not 

repayable. 

 

Other: 

 

Under certain circumstances, the NL Council could be held liable for the obligations of the regions, 

districts and other groups. 

 

2020 2019

Cost

Accumulated 

Amortation

Net Book 

Value

Net Book 

Value

Land 37$                 -$               37$                 37$                 

Building -                  -                  -                  868,698        

Campsite Buildings & Roadwork 1,079,960    507,223        572,737        584,426        

Furnishings -                  -                  -                  7,271             

Computer Equip 14,754           14,590           165                 235                 

Equipment 52,260           50,748           1,511             1,679             

Generator - Camp NorWes 30,500           23,304           7,196             8,995             

Camp equipment 65,164           60,087           5,077             6,346             

1,242,675$  655,953$      586,723$      1,477,686$  
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2020     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

4. Financial risks: 

Financial instruments consist of cash, due from related party and accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities. The fair values of financial instruments approximate their carrying values unless 

otherwise noted. The fair value of the employee future benefits payable is not determinable as 

there are no sets terms of repayment.  Risk management relates to the understanding and active 

management of risks associated with all areas of the NL Council and the associated operating 

environment.  Financial instruments are primarily exposed to credit and liquidity risk. 

 

(a) Credit risk: 

 

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 

resulting in a financial loss.  Financial instruments which are potentially subject to credit risk 

consist primarily of cash and trade receivables. The amount of credit exposure is limited with 

its cash balance by only maintaining cash and investments with major Canadian financial 

institutions. There is no significant exposure to any one individual or organization. 

 

(b) Liquidity risk: 

 

Liquidity risk is defined as not being unable to meet cash requirements in a timely and cost-

effective manner. Liquidity requirements are managed through the receipt of funds from 

different revenue sources.  These sources of funds are used to pay operating expenses. 

 

 

5. Deposits held for related Scout Groups: 

 

Certain Scout Groups operate under the auspices of the NL Council and do not have a separate 

charter to hold assets.  Therefore, any unused assets are held by the NL Council, though 

Properties Inc, for a specified time unless such funds are requested to be expended to 

replacement groups. Funds remaining in excess of the specified time are no longer available to 

those Scout Groups and are invested for the benefit of Newfoundland and Labrador Scouting. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2020     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

6. Related party transactions: 

 

a) Effective September 1, 2013, the National Operation assumed ownership from the Regional 

and Provincial Councils all the Scout Shops across Canada.  As part of the transfer of 

ownership of the Scouts Shops, the National Operation committed to paying the Regional 

and Provincial Councils 2% of the gross sales of the Scout Shops in their region.   

b) Effective September 1, 2015 the National Operation ceased paying the Regional and 

Provincial Councils 2% of the gross sales of the Scout Shops on their region and provides no 

operational cost support to the NL Council or to Properties Inc. for operations at its property.  

 

c) Effective July 31, 2019, the National Operation ceased all activities related to its operation of 

a Scout Shop in Newfoundland and Labrador. 

 

d) The National Operation has incurred $Nil (2019 - $Nil) for the rental of the Camp Nor’Wes 

site. 

 

e) Effective September 1, 2015 membership fees are collected from individual members of the 

Newfoundland and Labrador Council, primarily at the group level, and paid directly the 

National Office. No funds for membership are retained by the Council. 

 

f) The National operation has a defined benefit pension plan that covers most of its employees, 

and a defined contribution pension plan for the remaining full-time employees.  The National 

operation also provides its employees with other employee future benefits, including health 

and life insurance benefits.  Effective September 1, 2015 the National Operation assumed all 

liabilities and administers all such employee plans at its expense.  

 

g) Included in trade receivables at year end is $6,436 (2019 - $8,141) owing from Scouts Canada, 

National operations.  

 

h) During the fiscal year, Properties Inc. was awarded operating and grant revenue $Nil (2019 - Nil) 

from Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc.  

 

i) Included in trade receivables at year end is $23,696 (2019 - $19,679) owing from Scouts 

Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc. for net expenses on behalf of, 

and donations received and directed to, the Foundation. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       

Year ended August 31, 2020     

(Unaudited)     
       

       

7. Economic interest: 

 

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc. (the “Foundation”) and 

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Properties Inc. (“Properties Inc.”) are both not-for-

profit organizations, incorporated under the laws of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador 

and are controlled by Scouts Canada.  Properties Inc. hold legal title to real property operated for 

NL Council and the Foundation holds investments in order to provide sufficient income to make 

annual grants to NL Council for operations, programming and special projects as the Foundation’s 

Board of Directors may approve from time to time. During the year, the Foundation had net assets 

of $384,545 (2019 - $385,569). 

 

These transactions between the parties are in the normal course of operations and have been 

valued in these financial statements at the exchange amount, which is the amount of 

consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 

 

8. Capital management: 

The NL Council overall objective for capital through Properties Inc. and the Foundation (the 

Parties) is to fund capital assets, future projects and operations in support of Scouting in 

Newfoundland and Labrador.  The Parties manage their capital by maintaining and monitoring 

restricted funds for specific purposes, future projects and other capital requirements.  The 

restricted funds are disclosed in the schedule to the financial statements. 

 

The Parties are not subject to externally imposed capital requirements and their approach to 

capital management remains unchanged from the prior year. 

 

9. Subsequent Event: 

 

Subsequent to year end, certain proceeds from the sale of assets were transferred to the 

Foundation to be invested for the long-term benefit of Scouting in Newfoundland and Labrador. 





 



KENNETH P. LEDREW  
1.10.2020  

Private & confidential 

I. CONTACT INFO  

Mobile: +1 709 222 4238  
Email: NFLDLAWFIRM@GMAIL.COM  
Mailing Address: 24 Hillcrest Road, Corner Brook NL, CANADA, A2H 2K8  
Twitter: @NFLDLAW 
URL: WWW.NFLDLAW.COM 
 
II. EMPLOYMENT  

Medicine Hat Law Firm (Medicine Hat, Alberta) 1.11.16 - 1.8..2020 

 Owner of an Alberta General Practise Law Firm specializing in Criminal and Family 
Law. 

 Expert in Canadian and Alberta Criminal and Family Law.   

The Transatlantic Group (Helsinki, Finland, Alberta, Canada) 1.1.2005 – present  

 Founder & CEO of a consulting firm providing legal, IT and business consulting to  
individual and enterprise clients throughout North and South America, Europe and 
ASIA.   

NOKIA Oy. / Microsoft Inc. (www.nokia.com) Helsinki, Finland) 11.2.08 - 1.1.2016  

 Legal Architect & Legal Counsel Common Platform Operations 1.7.2008 - 1.1.2014 
responsible for designing and Architecting NOKIA's legal administration system 
throughout the NOKIA organization world-wide and providing Legal advice to the 
IT  Department globally.   

 Reported to NOKIA's Chief Architect.  

Linden Research Inc. (San Francisco California, Helsinki, Finland) 1.8.2006 – 1.10.2008 

 Director, Business Infrastructure, Linden Lab (www.lindenlab.com San Francisco, 
California, USA) a Social Media company providing the online virtual reality service 
Second Life  (www.secondlife.com).   

 Established domestic and international payment infrastructure.   
Managed US and international payment systems evaluation and legal and administration, 
negotiation and contracting relationships and implementation of European expansion.   

 Managed retained outside legal counsel in USA, Canada and EU.  

Sulake Corporation Oy. (Helsinki, Finland) 1.5.2004 – 1.8.2006  



 Director, eCommerce, of the Sulake Group (www.sulake.com) a world leading 
interactive  entertainment company distributing online communities and games 
(www.habbohotel.com).  

 Created international eCommerce infrastructure tailored to Sulake's teen aged customer  
demographic and online and mobile product portfolio.  

 Designed and managed Sulake's global payment network spanning 45 countries 
including  online, off-line, mobile and telecoms payment methods generating 95%+ of 
Group  turnover.   

 Responsible for payment service acquisition, legal and commercial administration and  
project lead for service deployment and overall management of 150+ payment partners.  
Planned and implemented e Commerce and payment services strategy reporting to COO  
and CFO.  

 Awarded "Best eComm Company" at Scandic Interactive Entertainment Awards  2005.   
 Expert in payment systems, international e Commerce and contract law.   

Campbell Germaine Cooper  (Fort McMurray Alberta ) 1.5.2003 -1.11.2004  
 

 Associate Lawyer practising Criminal and Family law prior to partnership  dissolution.   
 Accredited and certified collaborative lawyer by the Law Society of Alberta.  

 
Sonera Group. (Helsinki Finland, Boston MA, Chicago IL ) 26.6.00 – 1.12.2002  

 Legal Counsel / Regional Director (North America) responsible for managing and  
expanding Fonecta business in the US and Canada. Managed 15-person team.   

 Originally hired as a Legal Counsel before promotion to Management.  
 Expert in mobile, fixed line telecommunications and directory assistance business and 

legal  support issues.   

Translegal Ltd. (Stockholm, Sweden) 1.9.1999 – 23.6.2000  

 Legal Consultant in Anglo-American law to leading Scandinavian Firms and Legal  
Departments e.g. NORDEA (www.nordea.com) and Telia (www.telia.com) and also 
NordBanken, Vinge, Setterwalls, Danske Bank.   

 Expert in Anglo-American law and legal terminology and international legal translations.  

Stockholm Faculty of Law (Stockholm, Sweden) 1.9.1999 – 23.6.2000  
 

 Visiting Lecturer in Anglo-American law to first year law students while studying for  
Master's in Law (LLM).  

 Expert in International Law, Comparative Law and IP Law.  

Poole Althouse Clarke Thompson and Thomas (Newfoundland Canada) 1.5.1996 - 6.8.1999   

 Associate Lawyer performing primarily Criminal and Family law.  Crown Prosecutor / 
Agent for Federal Fisheries and Narcotics Control Act violations throughout Western 
Newfoundland and Labrador.   



 Expert in Canadian and Newfoundland/Labrador Criminal and Family Law. 
 
Faculty of Law University of New Brunswick (Fredericton New Brunswick) 1.9.1994 - 1.6.1997  
 

 Moot Court Assistant responsible for preparing and reviewing Moot Court materials for  
1st year UNB Law students.  

III. EDUCATION  

 LL.M Stockholm University, Stockholm Sweden (1.5.2000) Master's in 
Intellectual Property & International Law (Magna Cum Laude).  

 LL.B University of New Brunswick, Fredericton New Brunswick, Canada 
(1.5.1997)  Bachelor's of Law.  

 B.A. Dalhousie University, Halifax, Nova Scotia, Canada (1.5.1994) Bachelor's of 
Arts  (First Class Honors, Dean's List 1994, 1995, 1996, 1997).  

 Various in-course undergraduate scholarships '1991-'1994.   

IV. PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS  

 Member in good standing of the Law Society of Alberta, the Law Society of 
Newfoundland and the Canadian Bar Association.  

 Certificates in Arbitration, Mediation & Negotiation, from the Canadian Bar Association. 
 TOGAF Certified Enterprise Architect (NOKIA/Microsoft). 

IV. EXECUTIVE TRAINING  

 Project management and executive management training by Fonecta and Mercury Urval. 
 Leadership and management training by Sulake, TeliaSonera, NOKIA, Linden Research.  
 Legal training by The Law Society of Newfoundland, The Law Society of Alberta, The 

Canadian Bar Association and The American Bar Association. 
 North American Sales & Marketing training sponsored by University of Oulu, Finland  

(1.11.03-1.6.2004).  
 TOGAF Certified Enterprise Architect.  

V. HOBBIES AND ACTIVITIES  

 Travel, reading, hunting, fishing, mountain biking, The Elks and outdoor life.  
 References available upon request. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc. 
Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Properties Inc. 





Bursary and Distribution accounts

Jan 6th 2022

Bursary Fund Values $1,108,603

1 Cash $17,165 1.55%
2 Bonds $62,744 5.66%
3 Canadian Stocks $427,343 38.55%
4 Europe/Australia Stocks $115,936 10.46%
5 USA Stocks $361,464 32.61%
6 Realestate $75,103 6.77%
7 Emerging MKT $48,848 4.41%

Total a/c $1,108,603
floor : $1,056,989.88.

Distribution Fund

a Short term $42,836
b Dec-22 $43,026
c Apr-23 $42,677
d Apr-24 $42,744
e 2025 to be bought

2026 to be bought

Total A/C $171,283



 Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Properties Inc. 
 
 

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland & Labrador) Properties Inc. 
Camp Nor’Wes Fund 

 
 
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Statement of Financial Position

August 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2021
(Unaudited)

2021 2020

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash 107,941$             1,002,058$          
Accounts receivable -                          1,334                     
RBC Building fund 14,375                  14,375                  
Due from related party 36,252                  34,439                  
Short term investments 63,102                  -                          

221,670                1,052,207            

Property and equipment (Note3) 572,613                586,723                

794,283$             1,638,929$          

LIABLITIES AND UNRESTRCITED NET ASSETS
Current liabilities

Accounts payable -                          -                          
Accrued liabilities 90,604                  218,710                
Deferred revenue 5,495                     6,934                     
Deposits held for related Scout Groups -                          -                          

96,098                  225,644                

Net assets
Restricted net assets 30,966                  30,966                  
Unrestricted net assets 667,218                1,382,319            

794,283$             1,638,929$          

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

_____________________________  Member    _________________________________  Member

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Statement of Operations 

August 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2021
(Unaudited)

2021 2020

Revenues
Fundraising 1,442$                  -$                       
Government grants 5,129                     27,251                  
Trust Foundation grants -                          -                          
Other income 1,439                     3,816                     
Rental income -                          22,060                  
Gain on disposal of assets -                          4,032                     

8,010                     57,159                  

Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 5,183$                  1,798$                  
Office and general -                          1,480                     
Amortization 14,110                  14,995                  
Travel -                          -                          
Professional fees 7,519                     55,849                  
Repairs and maintenance 1,176                     11,450                  
Fuel and propane 519                         1,098                     
Insurance 8,730                     16,431                  
Telephone -                          3,682                     
Utilities 212                         4,266                     
Advertising -                          -                          
Vehicles 56                           282                         
Snow clearing and lawn care -                          6,181                     
Training -                          -                          
Other 264                         3,753                     
Interest and bank changes 375                         536                         

38,144                  121,801                

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures ($30,134) ($64,643)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.



 

4 
 

 
 
 

Statement of Cash Flows

August 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2021
(Unaudited)

2021 2020

Cash provided by (used in):

Operations:
(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenditures ($30,134) ($64,643)
Items not involving cash:
Amortization 14,110                  14,995                  
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 1,334                     22,319                  
(Increase) decrease in due from related party (1,813)                   (17,362)                 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued
    liabilitities (128,106)              99,802                  
Transfer of cash to related party (684,967)              -                          
Increase (decrease) in future employee benefits -                          -                          
(Decrease) increase in deferred revenue (1,439)                   (1,733)                   
Gain (loss) on sale of assets -                          (4,032)                   

(831,016)              49,346                  

Investing:
Advances to related party -                          -                          
(Increase) decrease in short term investments (63,102)                 -                          
Proceeds on sale of property and equipment -                          880,000                

(63,102)                 880,000                

Increase (Decrease) in cash (894,117)              929,346                

Cash, beginning of year 1,002,058            72,712                  

Cash, end of year 107,941$             1,002,058$          

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

August 31, 2021, with comparative information for 2021
(Unaudited)

Restricted Unrestricted Investment in 2021 2021
Capital Assets

Net assets, beginning of year 30,966$       1,432,705$    ($50,386) 1,413,285$   1,477,928$   

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenses -                 (16,024)           (14,110)         (30,134)           (64,643)           

Disposal of assets -                 -                    -                  -                   -                   

Transfer of funds to related party -                 (684,967)        -                  (684,967)        -                   

Net assets, end of year 30,966$       731,714$       ($64,496) 698,184$       1,413,285$   

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and                                          
Labrador) Properties Inc.



 

6 
 

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements     
       
Year ended August 31, 2021     
(Unaudited)     
       

       
Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Properties Inc. (“Properties Inc.") is incorporated under 
the laws of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador as a not-for-profit organization and as such 
has no share capital and is exempt from the payment of income tax.  
 
The Newfoundland and Labrador Council (NL Council) is a regional council of Scouts Canada National 
Operation, which controls and operates Properties Inc. Scouts Canada is a national organization 
operating programs aimed at contributing to the education of young people through a value system 
based on the Scout Law and Promise, to help build a better world where people are self-fulfilled as 
individuals and play a constructive role in society.  Formerly called the Boy Scouts of Canada, the 
National Operation was incorporated on June 12, 1914 by an Act of the Canadian Parliament. 
        
1. Significant accounting policies: 

 
These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for 
not-for-profit organizations.  The Entity’s significant accounting polices are as follows: 
 
(a) Financial instruments: 

 
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. In subsequent periods, 
financial assets with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized 
gains and losses reported in income. All other financial instruments are reported at 
amortized cost, and tested for impairment at each reporting date.  

 
Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of financial instruments measured 
subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other financial instruments are 
adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing cost, which are amortized 
using the straight-line method. 
 

 
1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 
Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal year 
if there are indicators of impairment. If there is an indicator of impairment, the Entity 
determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future 
cash flows from the financial asset. If there is a significant adverse change in the expected  



 

7 
 

Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc. 

 
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       
Year ended August 31, 2021     
(Unaudited)     
       

       
1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 
cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the present 
value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized from the selling of the 
financial asset or the amount the Entity expects to realize by exercising its right to any 
collateral. If events and circumstances reverse in a future year, an impairment loss will be 
reversed to the extent of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value. 

 
(b) Property and equipment: 

 
Capital assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization.  Amortization is provided 
using the declining-balance method at the following annual rates: 
 

 
The carrying amount of an item of property and equipment is tested for recoverability 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable.  An impairment loss is recognized when the asset’s carrying amount is not 
recoverable and exceeds its fair value. 

 
 
 
 

Asset Rate

Campsite Building & Roadwork 2%
Equipment 10%
Camp Nor'Wes Equipment 20%
Vehicles 20%
Campsite equipment 20%
Computer 30%
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       
Year ended August 31, 2021     
(Unaudited)     
       

       
1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 

 
(c) Use of estimates: 

 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting 
standards for not-for-profit organizations requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenue and expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates 
and assumptions include the carrying amounts of property and equipment. Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

 
(d) Revenue recognition: 

 
Camp and other fees are recognized as revenue in the applicable Restricted or Unrestricted 
fund in the fiscal year to which they relate. 
 
Properties Inc. follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Unrestricted 
contributions are recognized as revenue in the period received. Externally restricted 
contributions are recognized as revenues in the period which the related expenses are 
incurred.  Pledges of contributions and fundraising revenues are recorded upon receipt since 
they cannot be reasonably estimated. Camp and other fees are recognized as revenue in the 
period to which they relate. 

 
(e) Contributed services: 

 
Volunteers contribute many hours to assist Properties Inc in the governance of its operations 
and programs.  Because of the difficulty in assessing the number of hours and their fair value, 
contributed services are not recognized in the financial statements. 

 
(f) Financial instruments: 

 
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value on initial recognition. All other financial 
instruments are subsequently recorded at cost or amortized cost, unless management has  
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       
Year ended August 31, 2021     
(Unaudited)     
       
 
        

1. Significant accounting policies (continued): 
 
elected to carry the instruments at fair value.  Properties Inc. has not elected to carry any 
such financial instruments at fair value. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition of 
financial instruments measured subsequently at fair value are expensed as incurred. All other 
financial instruments are adjusted by transaction costs incurred on acquisition and financing 
cost, which are amortized using the straight-line method. 
 
Financial assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis at the end of the fiscal year 
if there are indicators of impairment.  If there is an indicator of impairment, Properties Inc. 
determines if there is a significant adverse change in the expected amount or timing of future 
cash flows from the financial asset.  If there is a significant adverse change in in the expected 
cash flows, the carrying value of the financial asset is reduced to the highest of the present 
value of the expected cash flows, the amount that could be realized in selling the financial 
asset or the amount Properties Inc. expects to realize by exercising its right to any collateral.  
If events and circumstances reverse in a future period, an impairment loss will be reversed 
to the extend of the improvement, not exceeding the initial carrying value.  

 
 

2. Property and equipment: 

Properties Inc. holds ownership of thirty-seven campsites and crown land leases which were 
either acquired when Scout groups ceased to operate or were transferred to Properties Inc. 
through the NL Council.  Since these assets were acquired at no cost to Properties Inc., they have 
each been recorded by Properties Inc. at a value of $1. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       
Year ended August 31, 2021     
(Unaudited)     
       

       
2. Property and equipment (continued): 

 

 
 
3. Contingencies: 

Government grants: 
 

During the fiscal year, the Properties Inc received $Nil (2020 - $27,251) in revenue from 
government grants.  These grants are for contracts with certain terms and conditions that may 
require that advances be repaid if the terms and conditions are not fulfilled.  Wage grants 
awarded to NL Council and managed by Properties Inc. amounting to $5,129 (2020 - $Nil) are not 
repayable. 
 
Other: 
 
Under certain circumstances, the NL Council could be held liable for the obligations of the regions, 
districts and other groups within the Council’s jurisdiction. 
 
 
 

2021 2020

Cost
Accumulated 

Amortation
Net Book 

Value
Net Book 

Value

Land 37$                 -$               37$                 37$                 
Campsite Buildings & Roadwork 1,079,960    518,678        561,282        572,737        
Computer Equip 14,754           14,639           115                 165                 
Equipment 52,260           50,899           1,360             1,511             
Generator - Camp NorWes 30,500           24,743           5,757             7,196             
Camp equipment 65,164           61,103           4,061             5,077             

1,242,675$  670,063$      572,613$      586,723$      
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       
Year ended August 31, 2021     
(Unaudited)     
       

       
4. Financial risks: 

Financial instruments consist of cash, due from related party and accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities. The fair values of financial instruments approximate their carrying values unless 
otherwise noted. The fair value of the employee future benefits payable is not determinable as 
there are no sets terms of repayment.  Risk management relates to the understanding and active 
management of risks associated with all areas of the NL Council and the associated operating 
environment.  Financial instruments are primarily exposed to credit and liquidity risk. 

 
(a) Credit risk: 

 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations 
resulting in a financial loss.  Financial instruments which are potentially subject to credit risk 
consist primarily of cash and trade receivables. The amount of credit exposure is limited with 
its cash balance by only maintaining cash and investments with major Canadian financial 
institutions. There is no significant exposure to any one individual or organization. 

 
(b) Liquidity risk: 

 
Liquidity risk is defined as not being unable to meet cash requirements in a timely and cost-
effective manner. Liquidity requirements are managed through the receipt of funds from 
different revenue sources.  These sources of funds are used to pay operating expenses. 
 

 
5. Deposits held for related Scout Groups: 

 
Certain Scout Groups operate under the auspices of the NL Council and do not have a separate 
charter to hold assets.  Therefore, any unused assets are held by the NL Council, though 
Properties Inc, for a specified time unless such funds are requested to be expended to 
replacement groups. Funds remaining in excess of the specified time are no longer available to 
those Scout Groups and are invested for the benefit of Newfoundland and Labrador Scouting. 
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       
Year ended August 31, 2021     
(Unaudited)     
       

       
6. Related party transactions: 
 

a) The National Operation has incurred $Nil (2020 - $Nil) for the rental of the Camp Nor’Wes 
site. 
 

b) Included in trade receivables at year end is $7,735 (2020 - $6,436) owing from Scouts Canada, 
National operations.  

 
c) During the fiscal year, Properties Inc. was awarded operating and grant revenue $Nil (2020 - Nil) 

from Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc.  
 

d) Included in trade receivables at year end is $28,518 (2020 - $28,003) owing from Scouts 
Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc. for net expenses on behalf of, 
and donations received and directed to, the Foundation. 

 
7. Economic interest: 

 
Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Trust Foundation Inc. (the “Foundation”) and 
Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and Labrador) Properties Inc. (“Properties Inc.”) are both not-for-
profit organizations, incorporated under the laws of the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador.  
Properties Inc. hold legal title to real property operated for NL Council and the Foundation holds 
investments in order to provide sufficient income to make annual grants to support future 
Scouting activities in Newfoundland and Labrador. During the year, the Foundation had net assets 
of $1,296,267 (2020 - $425,557). 
 
These transactions between the parties are in the normal course of operations and have been 
valued in these financial statements at the exchange amount, which is the amount of 
consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 

 
8. Capital management: 

The NL Council overall objective for capital through Properties Inc. and the Foundation (the 
Parties) is to fund capital assets, future projects and operations in support of Scouting in 
Newfoundland and Labrador.  The Parties manage their capital by maintaining and monitoring  
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Scouts Canada (Newfoundland and 
Labrador) Properties Inc.  
Notes to Financial Statements (continued)     
       
Year ended August 31, 2021     
(Unaudited)     
       

       
8. Capital Management (continued): 

restricted funds for specific purposes, future projects and other capital requirements.  The restricted 
funds are disclosed in the schedule to the financial statements. 

The Parties are not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. During the year the Parties 
implemented a long-term investment policy and strategy to provide annual support for future 
Scouting activities in Newfoundland and Labrador. 

 

9. COVID-19 Impacts: 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic continues to cause considerable social and economic uncertainty. During 
the year Properties Inc. had limited operations, primarily related to maintenance of some of its 
camp properties.  In accordance with COVID-19 health guidelines all camp operations were 
curtailed for the entire fiscal year, and revenues were significantly impacted.  
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